
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

OCTOBER 14, 2021 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Roll Call. 

 Pledge of Allegiance  

Approval of Minutes: September 9, 2021 

Rescheduling November Meeting from November 11, 2021 to November 9, 2021 

Final Plats 

Consent Agenda 
 
(1) P-1021-42 Waffle House, Inc Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Lots 

1 And 2 Vestavia Waffle House. The Purpose for This Request Is to 
Combine. The Property Is Owned By Waffle House, Inc and Is Zoned 
Vestavia Hills B-2.   

      
(2) P-1021-43 Rowena C. Shaw Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Shaw’s Addition 

To Dolly Ridge Estates Plat No. 3. The Purpose for This Request Is To 
Combine Lots. The Property Is Owned By Rowena C. Shaw and Is Zoned 
Vestavia Hills E-2.   

 
 
Rezoning/Annexations 
 
 
(4) P-1021-39 Jordan Huffman and Jack & Deborah Stadifer Are Requesting Compatible 

Rezoning For 2621 & 2625 Red Bud Ln. from Jefferson County E-1 to 
Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation.  

 
(5) P-1021-40 Keith & Taylor Cargal Are Requesting Compatible Rezoning For 2429 

Altadena Rd. from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The 
Purpose Of Annexation.  

 
 



Conditional Use 
 
(6) P-1021-41 Mike Mahaffey Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval for a Veterinary 

Clinic and Pet Grooming Located At 678 Montgomery Hwy. The 
Property Is Owned By Vestavia MZL, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-
1. 

 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 1 

 

 
           

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date 
at 6:00 PM, following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, in coordination with a Proclamation from Governor Ivey and 
pursuant to orders from the Jefferson County Health Department Official requiring social 
distancing along with limits of attendees, this meeting was held with a portion of the 
Commission digitally attending the meeting via remote computer locations utilizing a 
Zoom.com application. Staff and general public/audience members also were invited to 
attend via Zoom.com following publication pursuant to Alabama law. Chairman Barnes 
called the meeting to order and the City Planner called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mike Vercher, Chairman 

Ryan Farrell 
      Lyle Larson* 
      Rusty Weaver* 
      Hasting Sykes* 
      Jonathan Romeo* 

David Maluff* 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Erica Barnes 
      Rick Honeycutt 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer  
           

    *Member present via Zoom   
       

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Vercher stated that the minutes of the meeting August 12, 2021 are presented for 
approval. 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 2 

 
 
MOTION Motion to approve minutes was made by Mr. Farrell and second was by 

Mr. Larson.  Voice vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Romeo– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Maluff– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Larson– yes  Mr. Weaver – yes   
Mr. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
Final Plats 

(1) P-0921-35 Ronald Bruno Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Bruno’s 
Addition To Misty Lane. The Purpose for This Request Is to 
Amend Lot Lines. The Property Is Owned By Ronald Bruno and Is 
Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.   

      
(2) P-0921-37 Jones C, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey 

Of Lots 4 And 5, Block 1 Glass’s Second Addition To New 
Merkle. The Purpose for This Request Is To Combine Lots. The 
Property Is Owned Jones C, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2.   

 
(3) P-0921-38 Old Town Center 131 West 33rd Street Holdings, LLC & Old 

Town Center 33rd Street Holdings, LLC Are Requesting Final Plat 
Approval For Olde Towne Center Survey. The Purpose for This 
Request Is to Resurvey Lot Lines To Create Two New Lots. The 
Property Is Owned By Old Town Center 131 West 33rd Street 
Holdings, LLC & Old Town Center 33rd Street Holdings, LLC and 
Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-3.   

 
Mr. Garrison explained the request and stated all items are ministerial. 
 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Commission concerning these request, Mr. Vercher closed the public hearing and opened 
the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve items 1-3 was made by Mr. Romeo and second was by 

Mr. Farrell.  Voice vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Romeo– yes  Mr. Ferrell – yes    
Mr. Maluff– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Larson– yes  Mr. Weaver – yes   
Mr. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
      



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 3 

 
Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations 
 
 
(4) P-0921-36 Ruby Jo Hallman Benson Is Requesting Rezoning For 3101 

Timberlake Rd. from Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-2 
For The Purpose Of Commercial Development.  

 
Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated the proposed plan would 
allow for seven townhomes, as well as improvements along Oakview Ln. 
 
John Davis, from Express Oil, explained the request. 
 
Mr. Weaver asked Mr. Garrison if he thought the request with consistent with the Blue 
Lake area and supporting planning documents. Mr. Garrison stated he did not think so 
due to the surrounding developments and the Cahaba Heights area study labeling this lot 
as limited mixed use.  
 
Mr. Larson explained the history of development in the Blue Lake area and stated this 
request is “fundamentally different”. Mr. Maluff agreed with Mr. Larson’s assessment.  
 
Mr. Sykes stated he has used higher end materials on his construction projects in the Blue 
Lake area. 
 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
Brooks Harris and Bobby Patrick both own adjacent properties and spoke in opposition. 
 
Mr. Vercher closed the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Davis asked if  he could postpone the vote for a month to incorporate comments and 
concerns into the proposal. 
 
Mr. Vercher agreed but was uncertain that the delay would alleviate concerns about use. 
 
Mr. Larson additionally asked Mr. Davis to provide other examples of Express Oil in 
residential/upscale neighborhoods. 
 
Case postponed. 
 
 
Conrad Garrison, City Planner 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 7, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-1021-42 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION:   Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Lots 1 And 2 Vestavia 
Waffle House 

 
    ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1492 Montgomery Hwy., 3023 Columbiana Rd. 

 
 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Waffle House, Inc 

 
    GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Plat will combine the current Waffle House (Lot 1) 

with the Spin Cleaners (Lot 2) to create Lot 1A. The Spin Cleaners building will be 
torn down for additional restaurant parking. All existing easements will remain. 

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted  









1/
2"

 R
EB

AR

94
.4

6'

63.79' 27.00'

LO
T 

1A

COLUMBIANA ROAD

80
.3

5'

10
3°

03
'05

"

91°12'24"

136.32'

11
5.

95
'

60
°2

7'4
5"

105°16'47"
83.42'

179°27'24" TOTAL

US HIGHWAY 31
200' ROW

VE
ST

AV
IA

 W
AF

FL
E 

H
O

U
SE

M
B 

15
5 

PG
 2

8
LO

T 
2

1/
2"

 R
EB

AR
C

AP
PE

D
 R

LS
1"

 O
PE

N
 P

IP
E

2.
5'

 W
ES

T

3/
4"

 R
EB

AR

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
M

O
N

U
M

EN
T

1.
56

' R
EF

 M
O

N
.

PK
 N

AI
L 

6.
60

'
R

EF
.

BO
LT

12
3.

20
'

0.
45

 A
C

R
ES

+-

39
-0

0-
01

-2
-0

00
-0

22
.0

00
VI

P 
IN

VE
ST

M
EN

T 
G

R
O

U
P

LL
C

IN
ST

. 2
01

80
28

06
7

ZONE AE

ZONE X (SHADED)

SC
AL

ED
 F

R
O

M
 F

IR
M

PA
N

EL
 0

10
73

C
05

66
H

D
AT

ED
 9

-3
-2

01
0

30' SETBACK

86
°2

8'4
4"

89°14'38"

17
9°

55
'4

2"

39
-0

0-
01

-2
-0

00
-0

23
.0

00
M

O
O

R
E 

O
IL

 C
O

 L
LC

D
B 

94
01

 P
G

 1
45

1
AC

R
EA

G
E

215°08'18" TOTAL

C
R

O
SS

ROW VARIES
DB 6609 PG 871
DB 6698 PG 651

20' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT

DB 200611 PG 2954

30' SETBACK

ZO
NE 

AE

ZO
NE 

X 
(S

HAD
ED

)

ZO
N

E 
AE

ZO
N

E 
X 

(S
H

AD
ED

)

FLOODWAY
ZONE AE

SC
AL

ED
 F

R
O

M
 F

IR
M

PA
N

EL
 0

10
73

C
05

66
H

D
AT

ED
 9

-3
-2

01
0

M
AG

 N
AI

L

6.
64

'

90.97'

2.
92

'
20

.2
1'

M
AG

 N
AI

L

VE
ST

AV
IA

 W
AF

FL
E 

H
O

U
SE

M
B 

15
5 

PG
 2

8
LO

T 
1

RKC

1" = 10'

1 
O

F 
1

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

PROJECT No.:

CAD FILE:

SCALE:

RES

WAFF0052

VESTAVIA WAFFLE HOUSE MB 155 PG 28, SECTION 1,
TOWNSHIP 19 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, JEFFERSON

COUNTY, ALABAMA

A
S 

R
EC

O
R

D
ED

 IN
 M

A
P 

B
O

O
K

 1
55

 P
A

G
E 

28
 IN

 T
H

E 
O

FF
IC

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
JU

D
G

E 
O

F
PR

B
A

TE
 IN

 J
EF

FE
R

SO
N

 C
O

U
N

TY
, A

LA
B

A
M

A

SI
TU

A
TE

D
 IN

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 1

, T
O

W
N

SH
IP

 1
9 

SO
U

TH
, R

A
N

G
E 

3 
W

ES
T,

 J
EF

FE
R

SO
N

C
O

U
N

TY
, A

LA
B

A
M

A

GRID NORTH

ALABAMA WEST ZONE

VI
C

IN
IT

Y 
M

A
P

N
TS SI

TE

SU
R

V
EY

O
R

:
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P 
LL

C
12

0 
B

IS
H

O
P 

C
IR

C
LE

 S
U

IT
E 

30
0

PE
LH

A
M

, A
LA

B
A

M
A

 3
51

24
(2

05
) 4

03
-9

15
8

C
O

N
TA

C
T:

 R
O

D
N

EY
 C

U
N

N
IN

G
H

A
M

, P
.L

.S
.

O
W

N
ER

:
W

A
FF

LE
 H

O
U

SE
 IN

C
.

PO
 B

O
X

 6
45

0
N

O
R

C
R

O
SS

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

00
91

N
O

TE
S:

D
IR

EC
TO

R
 O

F 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
D

AT
E

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

AP
PR

O
VA

L 
IN

D
IC

AT
ES

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
H

AS
BE

EN
 R

EV
IE

W
ED

 F
O

R
 P

R
O

VI
SI

O
N

S 
O

F 
FU

TU
R

E 
O

R
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

S;
 H

O
W

EV
ER

TH
IS

 D
O

ES
 N

O
T 

M
EA

N
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
S 

H
AV

E 
BE

EN
 B

U
IL

T 
O

R
 W

IL
L 

BE
 B

U
IL

T 
IN

 T
H

E 
FU

TU
R

E.
AN

Y 
C

H
AN

G
E 

IN
 T

H
E 

R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

 O
R

 E
AS

EM
EN

T 
BO

U
N

D
AR

IE
S 

AF
TE

R
 T

H
IS

 D
AT

E 
M

AY
 V

O
ID

TH
IS

 A
PP

R
O

VA
L.

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 IN

 F
O

R
M

AT
 O

N
LY

:

26
01

3



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 7, 2021 
 

 
 CASE:  P-1021-43 

 
 REQUESTED ACTION:   Final Plat Approval For For Shaw’s Addition To Dolly 

Ridge Estates Plat No. 3 
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION: 4621 Dolly Ridge Rd. 
 
 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Rowena C. Shaw 

 
    GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Plat will combine Lots E-2A, Lot D-3, and acreage into 

Lot D-3-1. Lots combined are vacant. All lots are zoned E-2. 
 

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted  






























































































































































 


D E R E K
 S

. 
M

E
A

DOWS

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L

N
o

. 
2

9
9

9
6

S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R

LIC
E

N
S

E

D

A

L
A

B
A

M

A









































Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
 b

el
ow

C
al

l b
ef

or
e 

yo
u 

di
g.

D
ia

l 8
11

O
r C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1

































































































































































































































































 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 7, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-1021-39 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2  
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2621 & 2625 Red Bud Ln. 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: Jordan Huffman and Jack & Deborah Stadifer 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: This is a compatible rezoning of annexed property on 
Red Bud Ln. from JC E-1 to VH E-2. Property was annexed overnight by Ordinance 
3026 & 3027 on 8/9/21.  

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 

















 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     OCTOBER 7, 2021 
 

 CASE:  P-1021-41 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a Veterinary Clinic and 
Pet Grooming Located At 678 Montgomery Hwy. 

 
    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  678 Montgomery Hwy. 

 
 APPLICANT/OWNER:  Mike Mahaffey 

 
 GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant is seeking to establish a small veterinary 

practice and pet grooming facility in the City Center shopping center in the vacated 
Subway space. All services would be by appointment only and no overnight boarding 
offered. As per and agreement with the property owner, the greenspace behind the 
building would be utilized. A description of the applicant’s business is attached.  

 
 VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This request is consistent with 

plan for commercial core. 
 

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation: Conditioned on no overnight boarding. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
 








































